
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
Regular Meeting June 11, 2018 

North Pole Council Chambers 
125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska 

www.northpolealaska.com  
 
 
 
 

Monday, June 11, 2018 
Committee of the Whole: 6:30 p.m. 

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
   

MAYOR       CITY CLERK 
Bryce Ward        Judy Binkley   
888-4444          488-8583  
 

 
  COUNCIL MEMBERS        

Avery Thompson – Mayor Pro Tem  388-5351 
David Skipps – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 750-5106 
Aino Welch – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 488-5834 
Santa Claus     388-3836 
Doug Isaacson     322-3133 
Sharon Hedding    488-9075 
 
 

  
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag 
 
3. Invocation   

  
4. Approval of the Agenda 

 
5. Approval of the Minutes  
 
6. Communications from the Mayor 
 
7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor 
 
8. Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk 

 
9. Ongoing Projects Report 

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


 
a. Santa’s Senior Center Remodel Project Report and Opportunity for Public Comment. 

 
10. Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 
11. Old Business 
 
12. New Business 

 
a. Ordinance 18-12, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend Title 2, 

Personnel System, Chapter 36, Section .480 Insurance and Disability Benefits. 
b. Ordinance 18-13, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend Title 2, 

Administration and Personnel Chapter 36 Personnel System, Section 410 Regarding 
Leave and Adding Section 415 Voluntary Leave Bank Program. 

c. Request to Approve the Purchase of Motorola Portable Radios From ProComm 
Alaska for $48,582.26 Under the Department of Homeland Security Grant 20-SHSP-
GY17. 

d. Liquor License Renewal for Pagoda Chinese Restaurant. 
e. Liquor License Renewal for Loyal Order of Moose #306. 
f. Request to Accept a Department of Justice FFY17 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 

Assistance Grant (JAG) From the Department of Public Safety in the Amount of 
$82,100.00 

g. Resolution 18-04, A Resolution Dedicating the North Pole Utility Pump House on 
Peridot Street as the Howard ‘Buzz’ Otis Memorial Pump House. 

13. Council Comments 
 
14. Adjournment 
 
Detailed information and copies of agenda documents may be obtained at the Office of the City Clerk, 
125 Snowman Lane or on the City website www.northpolealaska.com .  Notice of Council Action is 
available at City Hall and on the City website following the meeting.  Council Meetings are aired live 
via audio streaming from the City’s website.  Inquiries concerning ADA compliance or 
accommodations should be directed to the City Clerk.   
 

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   1 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

 
 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 
      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 
A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, May 21, 2018 in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, May 21, 2018 to order at  
7:03 p.m. 
                 
There were present:     Absent/Excused 
Avery Thompson – Mayor Pro Tem 
David Skipps – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Aino Welch – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 
Santa Claus 
Doug Isaacson 
Sharon Hedding     Excused 
Mayor Ward     
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 
Led by Mayor Ward 
 
INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Ms. Welch  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
Mr. Thompson moved to approve the agenda of May 21, 2018 
 
Seconded by Mr. Skipps 
 
DISCUSSION 
None 
 
Mr. Thompson moved to consent the following items: 
 
Old Business: 
 

b. Ordinance 18-11, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend the 2018 
Operating Budget to Purchase New SCBA Equipment. 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   2 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

New Business: 
 

a. Request to Approve the Contract for Rolling Stone to Replace a Leach Field Damaged as 
Part of the Water System Expansion Project. 

b. Request to Approve the Fairbanks North Star Borough and City of North Pole 
Emergency Medical Services/Ambulance Contract Renewal and Amendment No. 3. 

c. Request to Approve Tuition Reimbursement for Detective Emily Gibson. 
 
Seconded by Ms. Welch 
 
Discussion 
Mr. Thompson added item c under new business to the consent agenda.  
 
On the amendment 
 
PASSED 
Yes: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Welch, Ward 
No: 0  
Absent: 1 - Hedding   
 
On the Agenda as amended 
 
Discussion 
None  
 
PASSED 
Yes: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Welch, Ward 
No: 0  
Absent: 1 - Hedding   
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Thompson moved to approve the Minutes of May 07, 2018  
 
Seconded by Mr. Claus 
 
Discussion 
None  
 
  



Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   3 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

PASSED 
Yes: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Welch, Ward 
No: 0  
Absent: 1 - Hedding   
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR (Audio 4:30)  

• The City of North Pole is now an Association of Defense Community Partner.  Members 
from the ADC board were in town two weeks ago to tour our bases and look at the 
community.  The Fairbanks North Star Borough is planning to partner with the ADC to 
put on a defense community summit in 2019.  For more information, please visit their 
website at www.defensecommunities.org. 

• I was able to participate in the FNSB senior citizen recognition day at the Carlson Center.  
The three mayors recognized many in the community but we got a special opportunity to 
recognize Patricia Therman for her volunteerism. 

• I was honored to speak at the Police Memorial Service at the Trooper Park in North Pole 
on May 11th.  The event was well attended and the lunch provided afterwards was done at 
North Pole Worship Center and much thanks for letting us use the facility. 

• The 4th of July Festival Committee is in need of volunteers, parade entrants, festival 
vendors, and softball players.  This year the softball game is North Pole vs Eielson.  The 
next meeting will be Tuesday, May 29th at 6pm at City Hall.  Please come help make this 
a fun event. 

• Tuesday, May 15th was the North Pole High School graduation and as always, it was a 
great experience.  Congratulations to our graduates. 

• Last weekend was a great weekend in North Pole.  We had the Fire Department open 
house, which was a great success, and Cruis’n with Santa put on by the North Pole 
Optical Lions. 

• Today for Arbor Day, the City planted a new Christmas tree out front by the Peace Pole.  
Thank you to North Pole Public Works for planting the tree. 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR (Audio 8:20)  

• Mr. Thompson stated he heard good comments about Mayor Ward’s speech at the 
Police Memorial. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 
 
Fire Dept., Chief Coon (Audio 38:16) 

• May 19th was our annual open house and would like to thank all of the Council members 
that came out with their families.  By all accounts, this year was another hit.  Captain 
Haywood and the members of NPFD put on a well thought out and organized event.  
Captain Haywood has posted pictures of the event on our Facebook page. 

• I attended the National Fire Academy last week in Emmetsburg, Maryland.  The class 

http://www.defensecommunities.org/


Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   4 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

focused on strategies for success.  I also spent a fair amount of time in the library 
researching funding alternatives for emergency medical and fire services. 

• Department members are in training for a state certified Fire Apparatus Driver Operator 
class.  This class is 80 hours and gives our members a state and national cert. 

• Laserfiche project is still ongoing. 
• On 5/11/18, we had a significant wind event that had numerous trees down on power 

lines and across road ways.  Until we are completely greened up, there is still a 
significant wildland fire threat. 

• Airpack grant update: ordinance 18-11 – second reading tonight. 
• Fleet Maintenance Report: 

o Engine 21 is still down for repairs.  Parts came in late last week and Deputy Chief 
Heineken worked over the weekend to rebuild the pump transmission.  Engine 21 
has been out of service for 38 days and Engine 22, which is 25 years old, has been 
assigned to first our duties.  This is a good reminder to the Council the need to 
fund fire apparatus replacements. 

o Squad 24 wildland pump is still out of service due to a catastrophic failure in the 
pump.  Squad 24 is 25 years old and parts are difficult to come by.  I will keep the 
Council up to date on the status of the squad. 

• Mr. Claus asked if 2 out of the 3 in-house resident spots are filled.  Chief Coon replied 
that yes, there is still 1 vacant position.  They went to NPHS recently to talk about 
firefighting and are trying to find local talent. 

• Mr. Isaacson thanked Chief Coon for attending the fire academy and asked if it has been 
awhile since he was last there.  Chief Coon replied that he tries to make it every other 
year and his goal is to make it there 20 times by the time he is done working. 

• Ms. Welch gave kudos for the nice open house. 
 
Police Dept., Chief Dutra (Audio 8:50) 

• First Net – explained the service, new pricing, and what it means. 
• Went through the stats from the department. 
• File cabinets, tires, rims, storage shelves, and a 10 year old copier are at the auction 

house. 
• UMOT update and NPMC – changes will take time.  
• JAG 2018 grant is finally out so we are working to meet the May 25th deadline. 
• Awards banquet is June 1st.  May officers are receiving awards so if you are interested in 

attending, please let me know. 
• ALiCE – many attendees are community businesses, churches, and organizations that 

will be able to share what they have learned. 
• I attended the FNSBSD meeting for crises team training and roll out. 
• Granite laser etched plaques for the Memorial Park have arrived and will be mounted 

shortly. 
• New patrol cars have arrived in Anchorage.  Outfitting and decals will take about a 



Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   5 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

month.  Lt. Lindhag secured new lights donated by Sound Off worth about $2000. 
• As you know, I sent you the good news about my appointment to APSC.  I am the 1st NP 

Chief to ever sit on the board. 
• During our search for psych evaluations for the evidence custodian, I found a company to 

do ours for $400. 
• Search for the evidence custodian continues – we started with 16 candidates and are 

down to 11.  A lot of time and resources goes into screening each candidate. 
• Police Memorial – shout out to all my employees who helped – thank you. 
• Torch Run – Officer Phil McBroom won for men.  Also participating were my daughter, 

Lt. Lindhag, and Officer Jim McBroom.  Thank you to all those folks for supporting. 
• Lt. Lindhag received a glowing thanks for helping a citizen with a PFD problem and her 

car alarm.  She brought him a plant to say thank you. 
• Mr. Skipps asked for an update on the evidence vehicle.  Chief Dutra stated there has 

been some movement but that Emily has been slammed with sexual assault cases and 
other investigations as well as the backgrounds on the evidence custodian applicants.  
The vehicle has the basics so it can be used now if needed. 

• Mr. Thompson asked if there was any word on the HIDTA designation and what that 
means for North Pole.  Chief Dutra stated that HIDTA is the High Intensity Drug Traffic 
Area and that there is a 15 member board that we have been invited to be a part of with 
the other local departments.  So that will give us a say in how the funds are spent. 

• Mr. Isaacson asked if Chief Dutra was looking into the bills recently passed to correct 
SB91 and how that affects us.  Chief Dutra replied that he hasn’t had time to study the 
changes because these bills came as a big surprise but he will look into it. 

 
Finance, Tricia Fogarty 
None 
 
Director of City Services, Bill Butler (Audio 29:54)  
Building Department 

• In process of plan reviews and permitting the residential and commercial projects 
reported at the last Council meeting. 

Public Works 
• Public Works has hired five summer employees. 
• Street sweeping is underway. 
• Building additional benches and trash cans for installation along Badger Road. 
• Flowers for roundabouts and planters have been ordered with expected installation in 

early June. 
• Mr. Isaacson asked if the street sweeping was just for the main roads or if the smaller 

roads would be taken care of as well.  Mr. Butler replied that anywhere the City put 
gravel down, we will be taking back up. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   6 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

Utility Department 
• Sulfolane settlement. 

o HDPE pipe installation continues in 12 Mile Village and along Hurst Road. 
o Peridot Road pump house beginning to construct forms and install subsurface 

piping. 
o Initial renovation work beginning at the water treatment plan – raising steel 

framework and preparing for a new generator. 
Natural Gas Utility Board 

• Scheduled vote to finalize purchase and sales agreement on May 29, 2018. 
• IGU is exploring an alternative approach from Siemens that would provide a “turnkey” 

means to supply gas to the interior. 
• Mr. Isaacson asked for an explanation of the Siemens approach.  Mr. Butler explained 

that the Siemens units are smaller than the Pentax units so you add as needed.  Also, they 
are not owned by IGU and Siemens uses rail cars rather than trucks so it is more efficient. 

 
Borough Representative 
None 
 
City Clerk’s Office, Judy Binkley (Audio 48:14) 

• Last week the other local clerks and I were part of the “election workshop” hosted by the 
League of Women Voters.  It was the first year this event was held and turnout was great.  
The clerks talked about the seats we each have open and important dates candidates will 
need to know.  The League did a presentation on APOC and finally there were guest 
speakers who talked about their experiences when they were in office.  Our next event 
will be the “candidate open house” on July 7th. 

• I completed payroll on my own last week and it went pretty smoothly. 
• We just received the renewal information for the health insurance plan.  Mayor Ward and 

I have a call with the insurance brokers tomorrow morning to discuss the options.  We 
will be going over that with Council at our next meeting. 

• As a reminder, the June Council meetings will be the 2nd and 3rd Monday (the 11th and 
18th) as I will be in clerk training the 1st week of June. 

• Mr. Skipps asked what the candidate open house was.  Clerk Binkley explained that the 
candidate open house is an event where the local clerks get together and have information 
about their municipality, the seats that will be open this year, and the requirements to run 
for elected office.  It’s an opportunity for those who are seriously thinking about running 
for office to ask questions and pick up information.  

 



Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   7 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
None 
 
CITIZENS COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
ORDINANCE 18-10, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 
APPLY FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA’S MILITARY FACILITY ZONE FOR THE 
ENTIRE NORTH POLE CITY LIMITS. (Audio 50:40) 
 
Mayor Ward introduced the ordinance. 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Mr. Thompson moved to adopt Ordinance 18-10, an ordinance of the City of North Pole, 
Alaska to apply for the state of Alaska’s military facility zone for the entire North Pole city 
limits. 
 
Seconded by Ms. Welch 
 
Discussion (Audio 51:45) 
Mr. Isaacson moved to amend Ordinance 18-10, an ordinance of the City of North Pole, 
Alaska to apply for the state of Alaska’s military facility zone for the entire North Pole city 
limits by deleting the colon on line 37 after “North Pole” and adding “to designate the 
entire North Pole city limits as a military facility zone.” 
 
Seconded by Mr. Thompson 
 
Mr. Isaacson stated this amendment is to clarify the ordinance. 
 
On the amendment 
 
PASSED 
Yes: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Welch, Ward 
No: 0 
Absent: 1 – Hedding 
 
Discussion on the motion as amended 
None 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   8 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

On the motion as amended 
 
PASSED 
Yes: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Welch, Ward 
No: 0 
Absent: 1 – Hedding 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
REQUEST TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
STANTEC CONSULTING, INC. TO DEVELOP CUSTOMER SERVICE LINE 
STANDARDS FOR THE WATER SYSTEM EXPANSION PROJECT. (Audio 53:45) 
 
Bill Butler introduced the request. 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Mr. Thompson moved to approve the professional services agreement with Stantec 
Consulting, Inc. to develop customer service line standards for the water system expansion 
project. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Skipps 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
PASSED 
Yes: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Welch, Ward 
No: 0 
Absent: 1 - Hedding 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS (Audio 1:01:20) 
 
Mr. Skipps - None 
 
Ms. Welch – Thank you to the fire department for the open house.  I also attended Cruis’n with 
Santa and that was a lot of fun. 
 
Mr. Isaacson – Mr. Skipps was one of the organizers for Cruis’n with Santa and it was a nice 
event.  Chief Coon also did a good job with the open house.  It was a fun day at North Pole 
because the day care had a big jumpy house so as kids left the fire station, there was another 
activity. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   9 
Minutes NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
May 21, 2018 
 
 

 
Mr. Claus – Had the great pleasure of meeting with some of the folks visiting from Thailand.  
They are having a celebration this Saturday.  Also, this Thursday is red nose day which is an 
anti-child poverty campaign. 
 
Mr. Thompson – None 
 
Mayor Ward – Next Monday is Memorial Day.  Also the Visitor’s Center opens that weekend.  
Tomorrow at 6pm is the KJNP conditional use tower hearing at the Borough Chambers.  The 
Thailand delegation has an event on the 26th from 11-1 so if anyone from Council would like to 
go, I will be happy to share the information after the meeting. 
 
Ms. Welch moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:11 p.m. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Skipps 
 
The regular meeting of Monday, May 21, 2018 adjourned at 8:12 p.m.  
 
These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 
Council on Monday, June 11, 2018.  
   
        
 

____________________________________ 
        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
___________________________________ 
Judy Binkley, North Pole City Clerk 
 
   



1 
 

125 Snowman Ln 
North Pole, Alaska  
99705 
907-888-4444 
907-488-8584 

City of North Pole 
Office of the Mayor 

Memo 
To: City of North Pole Staff, North Pole City Council 

From: Mayor Ward 

cc:  

Date: May 25, 2018 

Re: Health Insurance, employee contributions 

  

Council, 

Please review attached ordinance 18-12, which would increase the employee 
contribution to the health care plan up to the maximum allowed to maintain our 
grandfathered status under the Affordable Healthcare Act (ACA).  The City is 
experiencing a large increase this year due to the experience of the plan and it is my 
recommendation to increase the employee contribution to help cover the increases.  
The employee increase is roughly 11.5%, this increase is equal to a $2.31 per pay 
period increase for individual employees and a $9.25 per pay period increase for 
dependents.  

This Ordinance will be presented to the council on the June 11th council meeting and 
considered for approval June 18th, at the same time as the plan renewal.  I encourage 
you to participate in the discussion and welcome the input, thank you.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
 
 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: June 11, 2018 

Possible Adoption: June 18, 2018  
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
ORDINANCE 18-12 2 

 3 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 4 
TO AMEND TITLE 2, PERSONNEL SYSTEM, CHAPTER 36, 5 
SECTION .480 INSURANCE AND DISABILITY BENEFITS.   6 

  7 
WHEREAS, changes to the practices, regulations and policies is a continually changing 8 
requirement; and 9 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 10 
requirements of the City; and 11 

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole continues to see an increase in health care cost, reflective 12 
of the market; and 13 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes budgetary constraints and desires to make changes to 14 
the plan to continue to be able to offer health care coverage; and  15 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole desires to maintain grandfather status of our health care 16 
plan; and  17 

WHEREAS, the City’s health care plan, even with proposed changes, is still a competitive plan 18 
when compared with other plans of like sized organizations.  19 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 20 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 21 

Section 2. Title 2 - Administration and Personnel, Chapter 2.36 - Personnel System, Section 22 
2.36.480 – Insurance and disability benefits, is amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances as 23 
follows [new text in underlined italicized red font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 24 

2.36.480 Insurance and disability benefits.  25 

A.    Medical and Hospital Insurance. The city shall make available employees’ health and life 26 
insurance for family members. All permanent employees and dependents, may at their option, 27 
participate in the City’s group health care and life insurance benefits programs. Employees shall 28 
pay a $45 (forty-five-dollar) $50 (fifty dollar) monthly premium for coverage, and a $175 (one-29 
hundred-seventy-five-dollars) $195 (one-hundred-ninety-five dollar) monthly premium for 30 
dependent coverage. A Flexible Spending Account is available to those employees who wish to 31 
participate in the program. 32 

 33 
Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective on June 25, 2018. 34 
 35 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: June 11, 2018 

Possible Adoption: June 18, 2018  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 36 
_____day of _____, 2018.  37 
 38 
 39 
        _____________________________ 40 
        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 41 
 42 
 43 
ATTEST: 44 
 45 
 46 
________________________________ 47 
Judy L. Binkley, North Pole City Clerk 48 
 49 
 50 
 51 
 52 
 53 

PASSED/FAILED 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 



1 
 

125 Snowman Ln 
North Pole, Alaska  
99705 
907-888-4444 
907-488-8584 

City of North Pole 
Office of the Mayor 

Memo 
To: City of North Pole Staff, North Pole City Council 

From: Mayor Ward 

cc:  

Date: May 30, 2018 

Re: Leave Bank Ordinance  

  

Council, 

Please review the attached ordinance, which would change the process of our leave 
assistance code. The new process would create a leave bank in which employees 
would be able to donate leave for those who may need assistance, once their leave is 
exhausted for a medical or other qualifying reason. Leave would be donated at the 
hourly rate of the employee donating leave and withdrawn based on the hourly rate of 
the employee to receive the benefit.  I am proposing the leave bank be limited to 
$10,000 and it would not expire between years if not used.  It is my hope that this new 
process will be fair and equitable for all employees and provide an additional level of 
safety for employees that endure a qualifying hardship. 

This Ordinance will be presented to the council on the June 11th council meeting and 
considered for approval June 18th.  I encourage all employees to participate in the 
discussion. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
 
 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: June 11, 2018 

Possible Adoption: June 18, 2018 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
ORDINANCE 18-13 2 

 3 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 4 
TO AMEND TITLE 2, ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL 5 

CHAPTER 36 PERSONNEL SYSTEM, SECTION 410 6 
REGARDING LEAVE AND ADDING SECTION 415 7 

VOLUNTARY LEAVE BANK PROGRAM 8 
  9 
WHEREAS, changes to the practices, regulations and policies is a continually changing 10 
requirement; and 11 

WHEREAS, the City desires to create programs to help employees who may need assistance 12 
due to a family emergency; and 13 

WHEREAS, City employees are given the opportunity to help another employee who is in need; 14 
and, 15 

WHEREAS, the current city code already allows for leave to be donated to an employee in 16 
need; and, 17 

WHEREAS, the proposed new code gives greater clarity to how a leave program can be 18 
operated with equal application to all employees. 19 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 20 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 21 

Section 2. Title 2 Administration and personnel, Chapter 36 Personnel systems is amended in the 22 
North Pole Code of Ordinances as by inserting the text underlined, and removing the lines that 23 
have been stricken:  24 

2.36.410 Leave.  25 

A.    All full-time employees shall be granted leave time in hours per month, as per the following 26 
table: 27 

Employees Hired After January 1, 1990  
Employee 2 years or less 2 – 4 years 5 years or more 

40 hrs/week 10.75 17.3 21.8 
19-day cycle 14.25 23 28.75 

Employees Hired Prior to December 31, 1989  
Employee 1 year or less 1 – 3 years 4 years or more 

40 hrs/week 12 18 24 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: June 11, 2018 

Possible Adoption: June 18, 2018 
 

Employees Hired Prior to December 31, 1989  
Employee 1 year or less 1 – 3 years 4 years or more 

19-day cycle 17.25 26.25 34.5 

B.    New employees shall not be eligible for leave during their first ninety days of employment, 29 
although leave shall accrue from the beginning of employment. 30 

C.    Monetary compensation (leave buy-out) can be authorized up to a maximum of eighty hours 31 
(one hundred twenty hours for personnel on the nineteen-day cycle shift) per calendar year with 32 
the approval of the department head. An employee must have sixteen hours remaining for forty-33 
hour-per-week employees and twenty-four hours remaining for nineteen-day cycle employees 34 
after compensation in order to be eligible. 35 

D.    Department heads/acting department heads or designees are the sole approving authority on 36 
leave. Approval considerations shall be based upon department operation requirements and the 37 
desire of the employee. Leave may be canceled or amended to allow the department to meet 38 
emergency situations. However, leave may not be canceled or amended to avoid paying 39 
overtime. 40 

E.    An employee who is unable to report to work for any reason without prior approval shall 41 
report the reason for his absence to his department head as soon as possible after the time he is 42 
expected to report for work. Leave with pay shall be allowed on a case-by-case basis. The 43 
department head shall determine whether or not an employee’s reason for absence warrants leave 44 
with pay. It is the responsibility of the employee to provide substantiation of their reason for not 45 
appearing for work. 46 

F.    Unused leave shall be compensated at the current rate of pay at the time of resignation or 47 
dismissal of an employee. 48 

G.    Leave can accrue from year to year with a maximum accrual of three hundred twenty hours, 49 
except that the maximum leave accrual for nineteen-day cycle shift personnel shall be four 50 
hundred twenty hours. When an employee’s leave accrual reaches the maximum limit they must 51 
elect either to receive monetary compensation or take leave subject to the provisions of 52 
subsection (C) of this section to reduce the accrued leave below the maximum level. If an 53 
employee changes from a nineteen-day cycle shift to a forty-hour-a-week shift, or vice versa, any 54 
leave that is over the maximum after conversion (see subsection (G)(1) of this section for 55 
conversion) for that shift schedule must be sold or taken as stated in this subsection. The office 56 
responsible for payroll operations shall ensure compliance with this subsection. 57 

1.    The formula for converting the accrued leave of an employee who goes from a forty-hour-58 
per-week shift to a nineteen-day cycle shift, or vice versa, shall be as follows: 59 

a.    From a forty-hour-per-week shift to a nineteen-day cycle shift: Multiply the current accrued 60 
leave balance by the current hourly rate of pay for the forty-hour-per-week shift and divide this 61 
total by the nineteen-day cycle hourly rate. The result will be the new accrued leave balance. 62 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: June 11, 2018 

Possible Adoption: June 18, 2018 
 
An example is as follows where: 63 

(a) = current leave balance; 64 

(b) = hourly rate of pay for forty-hour-per-week shift; 65 

(c) = hourly rate of pay for nineteen-day cycle shift; 66 

(d) = new accrued leave balance. 67 

(a) * 
(b) = (d) 
(c) 

b.    From a nineteen-day cycle shift to a forty-hour-per-week shift: Multiply the current accrued 68 
leave balance by the current hourly rate of pay for the nineteen-day cycle shift and divide this 69 
total by the forty-hour-per-week shift hourly pay rate. The result will be the new accrued leave 70 
balance. 71 

An example is as follows where: 72 

(a) = current leave balance; 73 

(b) = hourly rate of pay for forty-hour-per-week shift; 74 

(c) = hourly rate of pay for nineteen-day cycle shift; 75 

(d) = new accrued leave balance. 76 

(a) * 
(c) = (d) 
(b) 

H.    An employee may voluntarily donate unused leave he or she has accrued to another City 77 
employee who has exhausted his leave time and who is seriously ill or injured, or to care for an 78 
immediate family member who is seriously ill or injured. No employee may voluntarily donate 79 
leave from their account if the donation will cause their account to drop below sixteen hours of 80 
leave for a forty-hour-per-week shift employee or twenty-four hours for a nineteen-day cycle 81 
employee. In computing the value of the donated leave, the leave donated will be valued at the 82 
rate earned by the donating employee at the time of the donation. 83 

I. H.   All personnel not working the nineteen-day cycle shift will accrue leave as forty 84 
hours/week employees.  85 

2.36.415 Voluntary Leave Bank Program 86 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: June 11, 2018 

Possible Adoption: June 18, 2018 
 

A. The Leave Bank program is for employees who are experiencing a personal or family 87 
medical emergency, and has exhausted his or her available paid leave.  The Leave Bank 88 
program can also provide maternity leave once the employee has exhausted their 89 
available paid leave.  The City Clerk and Mayor will determine how much donated leave 90 
an employee may receive from the leave bank. Any unused donated leave will be 91 
returned to the leave bank. Donated leave will be withdrawn from the leave bank at the 92 
current hourly rate of the employee to receive the benefit.  93 

B. The following definitions are to be used for qualified leave bank request: 94 

a. Medical emergency: a medical emergency is a medical condition of either the 95 
employee or the employees family member that is likely to require the employee 96 
to be absent from duty for a prolonged period and to result in a substation loss of 97 
income because of the employees lack of available paid leave 98 

b. Maternity leave: the employee must have given birth to a child or have adopted a 99 
child or been placed with a foster child (in either case, the child must be age 17 or 100 
younger).  The adoption of a child by a new spouse is excluded from this policy. 101 

c. The definition of family member covers a wide range of relationships, including 102 
spouse; parents; parents-in-law; children; brothers; sisters; grandparents; 103 
grandchildren; step parents; step children; foster parents; foster children; 104 
guardianship relationships; as applicable. 105 

C. The City Clerk and/or Mayor shall hear all requests for leave and rule on them quickly.   106 

a. Leave shall be drawn from the leave bank based on the current regular wage of 107 
the applicant. 108 

b. The leave bank may not have any more the $10,000 of leave accrued at any one 109 
time. 110 

D. In order to receive donated annual leave, a leave bank member who is affected by a 111 
personal or family medical emergency, or maternity leave, must make written application 112 
to the City Clerk. If the member is not capable of making written application, a personal 113 
representative may make the application on behalf of the employee to the City Clerk. 114 

a. Each application should include: 115 

i. The name, position title, and grade or pay level of the leave bank member. 116 

ii. The reasons transferred leave is needed, including a brief description of 117 
the nature, severity, and anticipated duration of the medical emergency, 118 
and if it is a recurring one, the approximate frequency of the medical 119 
emergency affecting the leave bank member. 120 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: June 11, 2018 

Possible Adoption: June 18, 2018 
 

iii. If required by the City Clerk or Mayor, certification regarding the medical 121 
emergency from one or more physicians or other appropriate experts. (The 122 
agency must pay the expenses associated with obtaining agency-required 123 
certification from more than one source.) 124 

iv. Any additional information required by the City Clerk or Mayor. 125 

E. Employees may donate leave to the leave bank with a written request to their respective 126 
department head.  Leave will be deposited on behalf of an employee at their current 127 
regular wage into the leave bank.   128 

 129 

Section 3. Effective date. 130 
This ordinance shall become effective upon passage. 131 
 132 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 133 
_____day of _____, 2018.  134 
 135 
 136 
        _____________________________ 137 
        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 138 
 139 
 140 
ATTEST: 141 
 142 
 143 
________________________________ 144 
Judy L. Binkley, North Pole City Clerk 145 
 146 
 147 
 148 
 149 
 150 

PASSED/FAILED 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 











125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, AK 99705 
P:  907-488-8583 
F:  907-488-3002 
judy.binkley@northpolealaska.org 

City of North Pole 
Office of the City Clerk/HR Mgr 

Memo 
To: North Pole City Council       
From: Judy L. Binkley 
CC:   Mayor Ward 
Date: June 6, 2018 
Re: Liquor License Renewal 

City Council Members, 
 
The ABC Board has contacted the City of North Pole as the following business is renewing their 
license within our jurisdiction. 
 

 
 
The ABC Board is required under Alaska Statute to notify the City in writing that this establishment is 
renewing their liquor license so the City Council can file a “protest” if they so desire. 
 
The City Council is provided information on any complaints regarding the establishment from the 
Police Department, Fire Department, and also if they are up to date with their City business license, 
water & sewer, and all sales tax. 
 
As of this date, there are no violations against the establishment up for renewal and recommendation is 
for a vote of non-objection for the above business. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Judy Binkley, North Pole City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

June 1, 2018 
 
City of North Pole 
Attn:  Kathy Weber 
Via Email: kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org  
Cc: kmajor@fnsb.us 
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Package Store License Number: 2851 
Licensee: First Security Investments Inc. 
Doing Business As: Pagoda Chinese Restaurant 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

mailto:kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org
mailto:kmajor@fnsb.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


















125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, AK 99705 
P:  907-488-8583 
F:  907-488-3002 
judy.binkley@northpolealaska.org 

City of North Pole 
Office of the City Clerk/HR Mgr 

Memo 
To: North Pole City Council       
From: Judy L. Binkley 
CC:   Mayor Ward 
Date: June 6, 2018 
Re: Liquor License Renewal 

City Council Members, 
 
The ABC Board has contacted the City of North Pole as the following business is renewing their 
license within our jurisdiction. 
 

 
 
The ABC Board is required under Alaska Statute to notify the City in writing that this establishment is 
renewing their liquor license so the City Council can file a “protest” if they so desire. 
 
The City Council is provided information on any complaints regarding the establishment from the 
Police Department, Fire Department, and also if they are up to date with their City business license, 
water & sewer, and all sales tax. 
 
As of this date, there are no violations against the establishment up for renewal and recommendation is 
for a vote of non-objection for the above business. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Judy Binkley, North Pole City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

June 1, 2018 
 
City of North Pole 
Attn:  Kathy Weber 
Via Email: kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org  
Cc: kmajor@fnsb.us 
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Club License Number: 3177 
Licensee: North Pole Loyal Order of Moose #306 
Doing Business As: Loyal Order of Moose #306 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

mailto:kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org
mailto:kmajor@fnsb.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov






















Page 1 of 16  

 
 

Project Narrative 
 
 
 

The North Pole Police Department (NPPD) is continually evaluating its efforts and 

successes to better achieve a proactive approach to law enforcement in order to meet the 

demands of the surrounding community and citizens of the City of North Pole. NPPD currently 

serves a base population of approximately 22021 which doubles daily as result of 4 public 

schools, multiple shopping, restaurants and businesses. North Pole has its share of serious 

crimes and there is a noticeable increase in the complexity of the criminal activity. In 2012 a 

random study of 375 NPPD cases revealed 88 percent of NPPD arrests originate by perpetrators 

residing outside the City of North Pole. As recent as June 2014, NPPD responded to a burglary 

of multiple apartments in a 4 apartment complex. Investigation revealed the suspects were 

targeting a drug dealer in the complex, who was using that apartment as a stash house. NPPD & 

SDEU seized approximately 3 ounces of possible unprocessed crack cocaine.  And finally, in 

2016, the City of North Pole had the first marijuana butane extraction explosion in the entire 

State of Alaska. 

High volume of traffic passing through the city on the Richardson Highway, with AADT 

in excess of 12,000 vehicles, and continued housing construction, in and around the city, NPPD 

has seen a rise in some serious crime between 2004 and 2007. Our efforts seem to be working in 

numerous "drug related," crimes. In 2010 we observed a 25% increase, year over year, in 

burglaries, 6% increase in larcenies. We showed a 3% increase in drug cases, this is the highest 

number of cases recorded by NPPD and almost double the number of cases compared to 2005. 

The most disturbing trend is the steady increase of juvenile drug arrests since 2008, as well as the 

introduction of synthetic drugs (spice), bath salts, and limited but returning incidents of crystal 

meth. 

 
 

1 2009 U.S. Census Bureau 



Page 2 of 16  

 
 
 
 
 
 

The North Pole Police Department, through service requests made by the Fairbanks 

Police Department, and the Alaska State Troopers, serves not only the City proper but an area 

surrounding North Pole with a population in excess of 20,000, within a 10 mile radius. These 

service requests are a significant drain on patrol resources and have a significant impact on the 

quality of investigations and apprehension of suspects. Lastly the North Pole area to include the 

City of North Pole will soon see a population explosion due to the F35 designation at Eielson 

AFB.  We expect our drug and crime rates to soar with the influx of people.  In order to help 

meet the needs of the community at large, the City of North Pole has authorized the creation of 

a full time position with the multi-jurisdictional drug unit in 2008. NPPD's participation with 

the SDEU has proven successful with every participating year.   

In order to help facilitate this additional position, NPPD is requesting support from the 

State of Alaska Department of Public Safety pass through JAG sub-grant from Edward Byrne 

Memorial Discretionary Grant Program (Byrne Program) to help fund a portion of the salary and 

benefits for FY 2018. The continuation of this position will greatly enhance the City's ability to 

meet local law enforcement needs that will impact the criminal elements that plague every 

community in the State of Alaska. 

The goal of this position is to facilitate a joint law enforcement and prosecution effort 

involving multiple criminal justice agencies across several jurisdictions. These agencies will 

share the common goal of addressing drug enforcement and violent crime problems in and 

around North Pole, Fairbanks and other interior Alaskan communities. We wish to enhance our 

abilities by fostering better communication, intelligence sharing, and coordinate activities with 

all Federal, State, and local law enforcement agencies in the State. 

 

 



Page 3 of 16  

 

The North Pole Police Department has demonstrated ability to competently manage an 

annual budget in excess of $2, 2 00,000 and has managed COPS, Homeland Security, and Alaska 

Highway Safety grants in the past. The police department is set up to handle local, state, and 

federal grants through an internal record keeping system that is filed within the department and  
 
simultaneously in the City Accountant's Office. Negotiation, award, contract, program/progress  
 
records/reports, procurements, invoicing, payments, time sheets, and other fiduciary aspects of  
 
grant management are in this system. 

The City implements internal controls to ensure compliance with applicable laws and  

regulations related to all of its grant-funded programs. The City recognizes grant revenues when  

qualifying expenditures are incurred. All of this helps us meet the requirements of grant  

agreements and corresponding federal and state laws. The City's accounting system records all  

costs associated with each of its grants in separate, self-balancing accounts. The accounting  

records are used as a basis for completing required grant reports. Before posting any results,  

grant costs are reviewed for reasonableness, allowability, and allocability to each grant project.  

Grant project accounts are broken into sub-accounts by program element and cost objective. 
 
Appropriate documentation is maintained for personnel costs, fringe benefits, travel, purchases 

of professional services/consultants, materials, supplies and equipment, and other costs. The 

accounting records are subjected to annual independent financial statement and single audit. 

The City has formal procurement procedures to assure that professional services 

consultants, equipment, materials, and supplies are obtained on a competitive basis and has 

procedures to assure that the types of contracts unacceptable to the federal government are not 

utilized. Quotations are reviewed to assure that the proposed price is reasonable to the 

contractor, the recipient, and the party providing the funding. 

3a. Project overview 
 

A North Pole Police SDEU Officer will be assigned to the Statewide Drug Enforcement 

Unit and they will work fulltime with the Alaska State Troopers and Fairbanks Police on a joint 



Page 4 of 16  

 
 
 
 
 
 

task force. Their purpose will be to stop the flow of illegal alcohol and drugs into the State of 

Alaska specifically targeting areas in and around Fairbanks and North Pole. The SDEU has a 

primary focus on North Pole, Fairbanks, and surrounding communities but it also serves the 

surrounding area north to Barrow and east to the Canadian border. The primary mission of the 

SDEU is to conduct investigations into the illicit importation, manufacture, and sale of drugs 

and bootleg alcohol. Because drug and alcohol use is inevitably linked to most serious crimes it 

needs the proper resources only a multijurisdictional team can address. In order to reach the 

desired service standard NPPD developed the following goals and objectives which are currently 

similar to the priorities set out in the Alaska JAG program. 

The goals and objectives for this project are clear. This project is designed to help 

coordinate efforts and resources from local, state, and Federal agencies through a statewide 

multi-jurisdictional task force to interdict and seize controlled substances and alcohol that are 

illegally distributed throughout interior Alaska and investigate and apprehend distributors of 

controlled substances and illegal alcohol. 

3b. Need 
 

In 2008, the City of North Pole and the surrounding communities understood the need to 

enhance the present drug enforcement efforts through better utilization of available resources, 

increasing communications, expanding intelligence sharing, and improving coordination by 

unifying our direction. The City of North Pole also recognized the correlation between illegal 

substances abuse and incident of crimes. In 2016 two major changes were presented which 

effected law enforcement, specifically narcotics enforcement. The legalization of Marijuana in 

Alaska and the passing of SB9l, presenting significant challenges to narcotics enforcement 

throughout the state of Alaska. SB91 essentially eliminated the ability to run informants,  

 



Page 5 of 16  

 

 

gather intelligence and it significantly reduced patrol level narcotics enforcement.  The entire  

enforcement cycle, into narcotics distribution, was disrupted. These facts demonstrate an even greater 

need for full funding of a dedicated narcotics enforcement officers and that cooperation 

throughout all levels of law enforcement. These new challenges dictate the need for new 

techniques.  This may include the other felony level criminal offense such as property crimes, 

which have significant relationships to narcotics abuse.  In 2018-19 the North Pole area will see a 

population explosion with the expansion of the F35 squadron at Eielson AFB.  This is going to 

increase the population and further exacerbate the issues related to drug use and abuse. 

Based on these understandings we applied for funds through the Byrne Memorial Grant 

program. These funds were to be used for a full time officer to augment the Statewide Drug 

Enforcement Unit, and add 50 hours of overtime, to be available for call outs to routinely assist 

the SEDU unit with illegal drug and alcohol interdiction. Our need to be represented on this 

team stems from the state wide problem associated with illegal drug and alcohol importation and 

the fact we are a central hub for most of the 20,000+ people who live in and around the North 

Pole area. 

Our community is significantly linked to every community in the interior. These links 

have been proven through the efforts of the Fairbanks Area wide Narcotics team. Low level 

drug users are frequently moving through our city and using our city as a hub for illegal activity. 

Our SDEU officer has tracked drug users and dealers through our city limits and is often engaged 

in surveillance of illicit activity in and around the City of North Pole. 

Since 2008, our justification to support funding for an SDEU Officer was based on 

observed increases in several areas of violent crimes. According to Alaska's criminal justice 

professionals, alcohol, marijuana, cocaine, methamphetamine, and pharmaceuticals have been 

identified as the primary substances of abuse in Alaska and are the focus of most law 

enforcement efforts. According to the Department of Public Safety, Alaska has one of the 



Page 6 of 16  

 
 
 
 
 

highest per capita uses of controlled substances. These abusers are known to be linked to 

violent crimes. One particular case brought this reality to the forefront, as mentioned an area 

wide drug dealer was utilizing an apartment in NP as a stash house. As well as the discovery of 

an outdoor marijuana grow in 2013, NPPD officers maintained sporadic surveillance of the site 

into 2014 and were able to catch the suspects replanting the crop in 2014, resulting in the 

seizure of 63 juvenile marijuana plants. With the recent legalization of marijuana in the State of 

Alaska, North Pole saw the first confirmed Hash Oil Explosion in the State, a preview of the 

future of marijuana in Alaska.  A steady increase in opioid deaths in Alaska has also brought 

added urgency to the drug task forces duties. 

Since 2017, we have identified several areas where statewide drug use has spiked.  We 

have seen an increase in opioid deaths and drug abuse is on the rise.  The changes in the state’s 

law, notoriously known as SB91, has hindered state wide drug enforcement efforts.  The ability 

to leverage felony drug possession cases, to help identify high level dealers, has been impacted 

and has caused all agencies in the state to turn to other tools to combat illicit drug trafficking. 

Our SDEU Officer has been diligently working with the Federal, State, local law 

enforcement, and state prosecutors to help combat illicit drug use and alcohol importation. In 

2016, the SDEU unit in Fairbanks reported 243 cases initiated with 419 in 2017. The SDEU unit  

reported $448,033 dollars in drug seizures in 2016 and $1,768,364 in 2017, $19,804.69 in asset 

forfeiture including cash in 2016 and $125,351.85 in 2017. These seizures included Cocaine, 

Marijuana, Methamphetamine, LSD, Ecstasy, Heroin, Crack Cocaine, as well as illegal 

prescription drugs such as hydrocodone, OxyContin, Valium, and Adderall just to name a few. 

The Fairbanks SDEU Sergeant has repeatedly made it clear that our SEDU Officer is a 

vital part of the team and his contributions are important to the continued success of the unit. 

Our previous SDEU Officers have also stated that they have not been able to work all of the  



Page 7 of 16  

 

 

cases within their normal hours, there is simply more work than there is hours. We hope to help 

resolve this issue with our current request of 50 hours of overtime for the SDEU officer. 

It is important for the City of North Pole to draw the conclusion that these illegal 

activities do not complete their criminal cycle within the boundaries of our city. Many of our 

citizens are victimized by offenders who leave the city and conclude their business in outlying 

jurisdictions. Our ability to penetrate and disrupt these cycles is imperative to our success. We 

must join our resources and knowledge with other jurisdictions to help infiltrate and disrupt these 

offenders and their illegal activities. It is our mandate to reduce the number of violent crimes 

within our jurisdiction and it is of such a need, that we must combine our efforts with other 

jurisdictions. The SDEU fills this need because it creates the much needed multi-jurisdictional 

focus on the criminal element in our community. Without such a multi-jurisdictional task force, 

these cross jurisdictional burglaries, as listed above, will continue with little or no knowledge of 

bordering agencies infected by the same criminal drug elements. 

 
 

3c. Project Activities 
 

Our goals and objectives for this project are to continue to participate in the SDEU 

program by securing funds to augment our budget in FY 2018. Our participation in street level 

drug enforcement and the multijurisdictional task force program will concentrate on the 

enforcement and prosecution of illegal drug and alcohol crimes, particularly drug and alcohol 

trafficking. We met this goal in FY 2016 - 2017 by continuing our participation in the SDEU 

unit and our plan is to continue the same successful strategy. 

Continued support of the current program we have in place has proven beneficial and 

coordinates efforts with the Alaska State Troopers, Fairbanks Police Department, University 

Police, Airport Police, Fort Wainwright Police, Eielson Security Forces and other Federal 

agencies in a cross jurisdictional effort to curb drug, alcohol, and related crimes on both a  



Page 8 of 16  

 

 

regional and local basis. In 2008 - 2016 we made headway in this effort with continued 

interaction with each participating agency. This has led to a better coordination among all 

participating and non-participating agencies proving to be effective and efficient. 

The objectives, which have been met to date, seem to be promising. Our current and past 

SDEU officers have enhanced cross-jurisdictional information sharing by supplying the North 

Pole Police officers with vital information related to current North Pole cases. Our SDEU 

officers have been a vital link in closing the gap between agencies that has existed for years. 

With our SDEU officer we have observed better collaboration and an increased communication 

on drug related cases. As stated above, these drug related cases have proven to be related to 

other serious crimes within the city limits of North Pole. 

 
 

3d. Evaluation and Performance Measures 
 
 

Goals: 
 

1. Participate in the SDEU program and assist with intelligence gathering, undercover 

operations, caseloads and arrests. 

2. Maintain information sharing between federal, state, and local police. 
 

3. Maintain or increase the number of arrests and successful prosecution of violations of the 

State's alcohol and drug laws. 

 
Goal # 1 Participate in the SDEU program and assist with intelligence gathering, undercover 

operations, caseloads and arrests. 

Objectives 
 

1. Reaffirm the appointment of our officer to the SDEU position and allocate necessary 

budget monies to fund the position remaining costs for the fiscal year. 

 



Page 9 of 16  

 

 

Performance Measures 
 

1. Reaffirm the appointment of the one NPPD Officer to the SDEU office. 
 

2. Approval of funds in the FY 2017 budget to offset actual costs. 
 

During FY 2016 - 2017 we funded some of the SDEU officer using the Byrne funds provided. 

Our Officer assisted with intelligence gathering, undercover operations, he assisted in increasing 

the case load and arrests. The SDEU unit routinely conducted surveillance activity and 

conducted undercover operations which resulted in several cases being sent for prosecution. In 

previous years our SDEU Officer was instrumental in ephedrine monitoring which is commonly 

used in the production of methamphetamine. 

 

Goal# 2 Maintain and make positive improvements to our information sharing between 

federal, state, and local police. 

Objectives 
 

1. Maintain the current strategies to increase the information sharing abilities between 

Federal, State and local law enforcement to decrease criminal activity involving drugs 

and alcohol. 

2. Maintain the strong permanent partnership with federal, state, and local law 

enforcement. 

Performance Measures 
 

1. Memorandum of agreements adopted by various law enforcement agencies 
 

2. SDEU officer to attend training sponsored by FBI, DEA, Homeland Security, and or 

the Department of Public Safety. 

3. Education and or training completed by all police personnel taught by the SDEU 

Officer. Training focused on increasing the quality of collection and data entry 

abilities of patrol officers. This will also be completed during overtime operations  



Page 10 of 16  

 

 

with the SDEU officer. 

4. Data sharing between groups evaluated for efficiency. 
 

Our department has maintained the Memorandum of Agreement with all participating 

agencies. Our SDEU Officer also conducted numerous brief classes with various shifts of the 

North Pole Police Department patrol personnel. In these classes he discussed what clues to look 

for during traffic contacts while on patrol, who the local drug pushers and users are. Also 

addressed during these contacts were better ways to improve data entry procedures for police 

contacts. It is mandatory for all patrol officers to enter vital contact information on all traffic 

contacts. This procedure has proven its value with documented case resolution from data entered 

from a traffic stop. 

Our evaluation of information sharing is an ongoing process. We have continued to seek 

ways to improve this process and allowed patrol officers to have access to SDEU drug 

information. This was not readily supplied previous to this grant. One effective way to 

accomplish this is to periodically have normal patrol officers get hands on training with the 

SDEU officer during operations. This exposure will help foster awareness and enlighten officers 

about the drug culture. 

Goal# 3 Increase or maintain the number of arrests and successful prosecution of violations of 

the State's alcohol and drug laws. 

Objectives 
 

1. Facilitate the exposure of underground, illicit drug, and alcohol culture within the 

interior of Alaska. 

2. Reduce illegal alcohol and or drug use within the North Pole and Fairbanks area. 
 

Performance Measures 
 

1. Increase or maintain the number of arrests of illegal alcohol or drug 

use, possession, distribution, and or importation. 



Page 11 of 16  

 

 

Our SDEU officer has been exposed to underground illicit drug use by working with other 

agencies doing traffic stops on drug buyers from known drug houses. These stops have resulted 

in the seizure of guns, drugs, and money. 

 
 
Key Maior Deliverables: 

 
Reaffirm the appointment of our fulltime officer to the SDEU position. 

 
Set up routine bulletins with patrol officers from the North Pole Police SDEU officer. 

 
Enforce the current policy and procedures for patrol officers to be required to forward all drug 

related case information to SDEU to help facilitate information sharing, specifically targeting 

information provided into Alaska Law Enforcement Information Sharing System. 

Evaluation 
 
 

Evaluation for effectiveness is an ongoing process. The person primarily responsible will be 

Lieutenant Lindhag who will review shift logs, reports, statistical compilations from the Records 

Division, and comments from NPPD meetings. His regular meetings with the SDEU officer 

will contribute to an ongoing evaluation process. 
 

1. Evaluation methods: 
 

Our evaluation process essentially includes review of statistical information regarding 

arrests and incidents (RMS and or APSIN) and a review of the reports from the State of Alaska 

District Attorney's Office regarding successful prosecutions. The department will engage in 

routine review of available statistics to chart progress toward stated objectives. 

It will be the Lieutenant's responsibility to monitor each performance indicator as detailed 

in our Evaluation and Performance Measures. All activities will be monitored on a regular basis. 

Evaluation of the project will also occur through the Alaska State Trooper SDEU Sergeant’s 

progress reports, reports prepared for the Chief, the SDEU officer, and the City Accountant. 



Page 12 of 16  

 

 

They will review time sheets, arrests and any noted problems and prepare a report that will be 

sent to the Department of Public Safety or other designated persons. The City Accountant will 

ensure all monetary records are correct and all funds and expenses are accounted for. 

 

2. Project Monitoring 
 
 

The analysis components of the evaluation will be represented in required reports 

prepared and executed for this project. Analysis will include, but not necessarily be limited to: 

1) All hours worked by the SDEU Officer will be documented with time sheets, then 

reported to the City bi-monthly and then will be reported to the Department of Public Safety 

designee as required within the grant contract. 

2) Reports submitted by the SDEU Officer will be collected by NPPD. The success of 

the operation depends entirely upon feedback from those who are in the field. The Chief will 

include the program and its success and problems in his yearly report to the City Council, Mayor, 

and the public. The City will be able to assess the efficacy of the SDEU program from the 

activities outlined in this proposal, and how this program makes prosecutions of crime more 

successful. 

6. Budget 
 

 
6a. Budget Narrative 

 
The following Budget Narrative is based on actual cost and overtime estimates for 

FY2017. All figures are rounded to the nearest dollar. All figures are based on full time 

devotion to the SDEU position. 

 

 

 



Page 13 of 16  

 

 

Section A: Personnel-Lists the actual costs for the current SDEU Officer Bruce Milne 

and his new salary range for FY2018. These actual costs will be $66,084.00. This cost is based 

on the hourly rate of $34.42 or $5,507 per month multiplied by 12 months which equals 

$66,084.00 per calendar year. These expenses include vacation accrual which will be billed at 

the time it is used. 

Estimated overtime calculation is based on FY-2017 overtime needs. Projected hours for 

FY2018 places overtime hours at the same 50 hours. FY2018 hourly rate for SDEU Officer 

Bruce Milne is $34.42. Overtime hourly rate is based on (hourly wage $34.42 X 1.5 = $51.63). 

Total projected overtime wages for the SDEU officer equals ($51.63 X 50 hours) = $2,581.50 

The total cost estimates for this category are $67,860.00. 
 

Section B: Fringe Benefits- for this category is listed as $41,582.20. 
 

Retirement costs are projected at the standard PERS, Public Employees Retirement System, rate 

of 22%. This 22% rate is calculated based on the projected earnings in FY2018, for current 

SDEU Officer Milne, which is estimated to be $67,860.00 Calculation= (wages $67,860.00) X 

(PERS contributions 22 %) = $14,929.20. Medicare costs are based on the standard rate of 

6.2% of gross earnings of $67,860.00 Calculation= (Medicare rate= 6.2%) X (Gross earnings= 

$67,860.00) = $4,207.00. Health insurance costs are based on established costs for the City of 

North Pole employee health insurance plan for an employee-family plan. These costs are set at 

$730.00 per pay period (26 pay periods = $18,890.00. Workers compensation rate is an 

established formula of 4.44% multiplied by the employee wages. Calculation is (4.44% X 

$74,159.90) = $3,556.00. Vacation accrual is calculated within the salaried wages and will be 

part of the expenses when the SDEU officer takes vacation. Only the hours accrued during the 

grant period will be used to compensate. 

The total cost for Fringe Benefits is $41,582.20. The total cost of Personnel and Fringe 

Benefits is $109,442.20. 



Page 14 of 16  

 
 

The following categories will incur no known or schedules costs for FY2016. Categories Budget 

Summary (rounded to nearest dollar): 

Category A.  Personnel = $67,860.00 
 

B. Fringe Benefits = $41,582.20 

Total Direct Costs = $109,442.20 

Total Project Costs = $109,442.20 

Federal Request = $109,442.20 

Non-Federal Amount = $0 

In summary, the increase from FY2017 is directly related to Officer Bruce Milne to 3% increase 

in salary for Officer Bruce Milne and increased employee cost of medical coverage. The base 

personnel cost to include overtime for the SDEU Officer Bruce Milne is $67,860.00. The Fringe 

Benefits total is $41,582.20, bringing the combined total to $109,442.20.  The grant amount 

requested for 2018 is $109,442.20.00 (figures rounded to nearest dollar.) 

 

6a. Itemized Budget Detail see attached.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 15 of 16  

 

 

 

7a. Application Agency Description 

 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Bryce Ward 
Authorizing Agent 

 

 Trish Fogarty 
City Accountant 

 

 

 
  

 Chief Steve Dutra 
Chief of Police 

  

Project Director 
Jeromey Lindhag 

Lieutenant 
 

 
 

 
 
7b. Project Personnel 

 
 
 

The Authorizing Person for this project will be Mayor Bryce Ward. Chief 
 

Dutra is the Chief of Police for the City of North Pole. Chief Dutra may contribute up to 

I hour per month to the project to include oversight, report reviews, meetings with 

Lieutenant and SDEU Sergeant, payroll, and budget reviews with the City Accountant. The City 

Accountant will be in charge of audit and financing for the project. These tasks will include 

payroll and fringe benefits calculations and audits. The City Clerk may contribute some time to 

the success of the project but this is limited to Human Resource and other related matters. The 

Lieutenant will assist SDEU Detective Milne in coordinating the flow of information. The  

 

Judy Binkley 
City Clerk 



Page 16 of 16  

 

 

Lieutenant will facilitate the exchange of information between the SDEU Officer and the patrol 

officers at NPPD. SDEU Officer Milne will contribute 100% of his time to the project as he is 

the only full time staff associated with the funding. Lieutenant Lindhag will contribute 

approximately 15 hours a quarter to assist with the success of the project. 



 
FFY17 JAG Local Grant Application  Page 1 of 1 
Project Abstract 

PROJECT ABSTRACT 
 
 
 
APPLICANT AGENCY NAME: City of North Pole    
 
AMOUNT REQUESTED:  $ 109,442.20 
 
PROGRAM:  FFY17 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 
 
PROJECT TITLE:  Statewide Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force Program 
 
PERFORMANCE PERIOD:  July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY: Please provide a brief summary of the project in the box below: 
; 
Lllldlkj;lksdjf;lkjsf  
The North Pole Police Department will provide one full time Detective to work in the State Drug 
Enforcement Unit in order to facilitate a multijurisdictional team stationed in the interior of 
Alaska.  That team will work to interdict illicit drugs and alcohol and help curb organized drug 
racketeering and assist in decreasing the overall drug use in the interior through active drug 
interdiction.   
 
The North Pole Police is committed to working with our Federal, State and Local partners to help 
combat criminal enterprises which are fixated on the importation and trafficking of illicit drugs 
and alcohol.  The goal of this project is simply to decrease the harm illicit drug and alcohol cause 
on the citizens of Alaska. 
  



PERSONNEL BUDGET DETAIL

POSITION TITLE/NAME QTY % TIME TOTAL

Officer Bruce Milne 12 100% $66,084.00

Officer Bruce Milne Over time @ $51.63 12 100% $2,580.00

-$                       

-$                       

-$                       

SUBTOTAL $67,860.00

POSITION TITLE/NAME QTY % TIME TOTAL

Ofc. Bruce Milne PERS Contributions 12.0000 100% $14,929.20

Medicare = 6.2% x 67,860.00 12 100% 4,207$               

Health Care =$730.00 x 26 26 100% 18,890$             

Worker Comp=5.240 x 67,860.00 26 100% 3,556$               

-$                       

-$                       

SUBTOTAL $41,582.20

TOTAL $109,442.20

PERSONNEL - List each position by title and name of employee if available. Show the monthly salary amount, 
number of months, and percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensataion paid for employees 
engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the applicant organization.

FRINGE BENEFITS - Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established formula.  Fringe 
benefits are for the personnel listed above and only for the percentage of time devoted to the project.  Fringe 
benefits on overtime hours are limited to FICA, Workman's Compensation, and Unemployment Compensation.

215$            

MONTHLY 
AMOUNT

5,507$         

$730.00

$136.77

MONTHLY 
AMOUNT

$1,244.10

$350.60

Page 1 of 6



TRAVEL BUDGET DETAIL

Purpose:

Dates:

-$               

-$               

-$               

-$               

Sub Total -$               

Purpose:

Dates:

-$               

-$               

-$               

-$               

Sub Total -$               

Purpose:

Dates:

-$               

-$               

-$               

-$               

Sub Total -$               

Purpose:

Dates:

-$               

-$               

-$               

-$               

Sub Total -$               

TOTAL -$             

Per diem:

Transp:

QTY TOTAL

Airfare:

Lodging:

Transp:

AMOUNT

TOTAL

Airfare:

Lodging:

Per diem:

TOTAL

Airfare:

Lodging:

AMOUNT QTY

Per diem:

Transp:

AMOUNT QTY

Airfare:

Lodging:

Per diem:

Transp:

TRAVEL - Itemize travel expenses of project personnel by Purpose: list type of event and traveler name(s); Dates: 
list dates of travel; Airfare: list from/to destinations ; Lodging: list type, cost/day x number of days = total; Per 
Diem: list cost/day x number of days = total ; Transportation: list type, to and from destinations.

AMOUNT QTY TOTAL

Page 2 of 6



CONTRACTUAL BUDGET DETAIL

AMOUNT QTY TOTAL

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

TOTAL -$                

DESCRIPTION

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - List itemized costs associated with communication services, car leases, 
equipment rental and maintenance, utilities, printing, advertising, postage, conference fees, etc. Monthly costs 
should be shown by amount per month and number of months.

Page 3 of 6



SUPPLIES BUDGET DETAIL

AMOUNT QTY TOTAL

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

TOTAL -$                

SUPPLIES - List items by type (office supplies, training materials, copying paper, fuel, and expendable 
equipment items costing less than $5,000 such as books, hand held tape recorders, etc.) and show the 
basis for computation.  Generally, supplies include any materials that are expendable or consumed 
during the course of the project.

DESCRIPTION

Page 4 of 6



EQUIPMENT BUDGET DETAIL

AMOUNT QTY TOTAL

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

TOTAL -$                

EQUIPMENT - List non-expendable items that are to be purchased.  Non-expendable equipment is tangible 
property having a useful life of more than one year. (e.g. vehicles, radios, computers, cameras, etc.)

DESCRIPTION

Page 5 of 6



BUDGET SUMMARY

AMOUNT

109,442.20$        

-$                     

-$                     

-$                     

-$                     

TOTAL 109,442.20$    

Contractual

Supplies

Equipment

BUDGET CATEGORY

Personnel

Travel

Page 6 of 6



STATE OF ALASKA 
Department of Public Safety 

Alaska State Troopers 
Division of Administrative Services 

 
 

GRANT APPLICATION 

Application is hereby made to the Department of Public Safety for funding made available 
through the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program, CFDA #16.738. 

   

AGENCY NAME: 

North Pole Police Department 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: 
 
125 Snowman Lane  
North Pole, AK 99705 
 

PHONE:  (907)488-6902 

FAX:  (907) 488-5299 

AGENCY DUNS:  015680010                      (REQUIRED) 

MAILING ADDRESS: 125 Snowman Lane  North Pole, AK 99705 

 
PROJECT CONTACT: 

NAME:  Jeromey Lindhag 

TITLE:   Police Lieutenant 

PHONE:  (907) 488-6902 

FAX:  (907) 488-5299 

EMAIL:  jlindhag@northpolepolice.org 

PERFORMANCE PERIOD : 

Start: July 1, 2018          End: June 30, 2019 
AMOUNT REQUSTED: 

$  
 

AGENCY CONTACTS 

AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL 

Name:  Bryce Ward 

Title: Mayor 

Phone:  (907)  488-8584 

FAX:  (907) 488-3002 

Email:  mayor@northpolealaska.com 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

Name: Tricia Fogerty 

Title:  City Accountant 

Phone:  (907) 488-8594  

FAX:  (907) 488-3002 

Email:  tfogerty@northpolealaska.com 

PROJECT DIRECTOR 

Name: Jeromey Lindhag 

Title:  Lieutenant 

Phone:  (907) 488-6902  

FAX:  (907) 488-5299 

Email: jlindhag@northpolepolice.org 

 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the applicant) certifies that the statements made in this application document 
and attached proposal are true, complete, and accurate to the best of his or her knowledge. 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: ______________________________________         DATE:   

 



























Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward 
Co-Sponsored by: Councilman Doug Isaacson 

Introduced and Adopted: June 11, 2018 

 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
RESOLUTION 18-04 2 

 A RESOLUTION DEDICATING THE NORTH POLE UTILITY PUMP HOUSE ON PERIDOT 3 
STREET AS THE HOWARD ‘BUZZ’ OTIS MEMORIAL PUMP HOUSE    4 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole owns the property and building being constructed at 2000 Peridot 5 
Street; and 6 

WHEREAS, May 27th 2017 Howard ‘Buzz’ Otis’ along with Sam Brice were killed when their Arctic 7 
Aircraft S-1B2 airplane crashed near the Salcha River; and  8 

WHEREAS, Howard, or “Buzz” as everyone knew him, was an avid and tireless North Pole advocate; he 9 
was employed by the City as the Director for Economic Development, which led to the launching of the 10 
North Pole Economic Development Corporation, which raised significant funds to beautify and promote 11 
the City, attract new businesses and host community events; and 12 

WHEREAS, Buzz was paramount in starting the North Pole Championship Sled Dog Races; and 13 

WHEREAS, the North Pole Championship Sled Dog Races, was rated among the top 5 sprint races in the 14 
world by the International Federation of Sled dog Sports (“IFSS”) and with the help of Buzz, the North 15 
Pole Economic Development Corporation won the right to host the 2013 IFSS World Championships, an 16 
event that brought in mushers and skijors from around the world to North Pole; and 17 

WHEREAS, Buzz Otis was owner of several businesses in town and firmly believed that “a rising tide 18 
floats all boats” and committed significant amount of his own time, resources, and money to help raise the 19 
tide; and 20 

WHEREAS, you could always find Buzz connected to any major event in town and serving on countless 21 
boards and committees; and 22 

WHEREAS, Buzz is sorely missed by his family, friends and associates in the community and the City 23 
desires to remember his contribution to the City of North Pole and surrounding community. 24 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the North Pole City Council names the Peridot Pump 25 
House, located 2000 Peridot Street as the Howard ‘Buzz’ Otis Memorial Pump House. 26 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that when the building is complete there will be a ceremony to 27 
officially post the plaque on the building.   28 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this _____ 29 
day of _____, 2018. 30 

________________________________ 31 
Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 32 

 33 
ATTEST: 34 
 35 
_________________________________ 36 
Judy L. Binkley, North Pole City Clerk 37 
 38 

PASSED/FAILED 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  


	Agenda
	05-21-2018 Minutes
	New Business: Ordinance 18-12
	New Business: Ordinance 18-13
	New Business: Radio Purchase
	New Business: Pagoda Liquor License Renewal
	New Business: North Pole Lodge Liquor License Renewal
	New Business: JAG Grant
	New Business: Resolution 18-04



